II.

118

Iv.

VI

VIL

Materials Innovation Recycling Authority
Special Board of Directors Meeting
Agenda
Feb. 18, 2016
9:30 AM

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Portion

A Y% hour public portion will be held and the Board will accept written testimony and
allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes. The regular meeting will

commence if there is no public input.

Minutes

1. Board Action will be sought for Approval of the Regular Jan. 28, 2016, Board
Meeting Minutes (Attachment 1).

Finance Committee Reports

1. Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Approving a Revised
“Authority Budget™ for Fiscal Year 2017 (Attachment 2).

2. Board Action will be sought for the Resolution Approving the Operating and
Capital Budgets for the Connecticut Solid Waste System for Fiscal Year 2017
(Attachment 3).

Policy and Procurement Committee Report

Chairman and President’s Reports

Executive Session

An Executive Session will be held to discuss pending litigation, trade secrets,
personnel matters, security matters, pending RFP’s, and feasibility estimates and

evaluations.






TAB 1






MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

FOUR HUNDRED AND SIXTY FIRST JAN. 28, 2016

A regular meeting of the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority Board of Directors was
held on Thurs. Jan. 28, 2016, in the Board Room at 211 Murphy Rd. Hartford, CT 06103. Those present

wEere:

Directors:

Chairman Don Stein

Vice-Chairman Dick Barlow

John Adams

Marilynn Cruz-Aponte (present until 10:45 a.m.)
Ralph Eno

Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley

Bob Painter, CSWS Ad-Hoc

Present from MIRA in Hartford:

Tom Kirk, President

Mark Daley, Chief Financial Officer

Jeffrey Duvall, Director of Budgets and Forecasting

Peter Egan, Director of Operations and Environmental Affairs
Laurie Hunt, Director of Legal Services

Moira Kenney, Assistant HR Manager/Board Administrator

Others Present: Ann Catino, Esq., Halloran & Sage; Jeff Martirano, HDR Engineering, Inc.; Doug

Pelham, Esq., Cohn Birnbaum & Shea; and Ed Spinella, Esq., USA Hauling.

Chairman Stein called the meeting to order at 9:35 a.m. and said a quorum was present.

PUBLIC PORTION

Chairman Stein said the agenda allowed for a public portion in which the Board would accept
written testimony and allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes. As there were no members
of the public present who wished to address the Board the meeting commenced.

APPROVAL OF THE DEC. 17, 2016, MEETING MINUTES

Chairman Stein requested a motion to approve the minutes of the Dec. 17, 2016, Board Meeting.
Director Eno made the motion which was seconded by Director Hayden.

The motion to approve the minutes as amended was approved by roll call. Chairman Stein, Vice-
Chairman Barlow, Director Adams, Director Cruz-Aponte, Director Eno, Director Hayden, Director
Painter and Director Shanley voted yes.






>
<

Directors e | Nay | Abstain

Chairman Stein
Vice-Chairman Barlow
| John Adams

Marilynn Cruz-Aponte
Ralph Eno

Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley

| XX K| X XX| XX

Ad-Hoc
Bob Painter, CSWS Project X

RESOLUTION REGARDING TRANSFERRING ADDITIONAL FUNDS INTO THE CSWS
IMPROVEMENT FUND

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. The motion was made by
Director Shanley and seconded by Director Eno.

WHEREAS, The Authority has previously established and maintained a Facilities Modification
Reserve under the Mid Connecticut Project for the express purpose of funding capital
expenditures for its Resource Recovery and related facilities and equipment; and

WHEREAS, The Authority has previously established and maintained a Rolling Stock Reserve
under the Mid Connecticut Project for the express purpose of purchasing and rebuilding
operating vehicles such as tractors, trailers, loaders, containers and sweepers used in the
operation of its Resource Recovery and related facilities; and

WHEREAS, Effective November 16, 2012, the Authority re-designated the Facilities
Modification Reserve, and $4,576,478.49 constituting the balance of such reserve’s net assets, as
the CSWS Capital Expenditure Reserve, and transferred the $1,183,779.60 balance of the
Rolling Stock Reserve into such CSWS Capital Expenditure Reserve, in order to provide for the
continued funding of capital expenditures related to the Hartford resource recovery and related
facilities and equipment as part of its transition from the Mid Connecticut Project to the
Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS); and

WHEREAS, The total funds made available to the CSWS Capital Expenditure Reserve of
$5,760,258.09 effective November 16, 2012 as stated above considered funds budgeted, reserved
and available for such purposes at the time of such transition together with the findings of three
independent engineering assessments of the resource recovery facility addressing its expected
reserve fund requirements and the status of the maintenance and upkeep of its related Power
Block component upon conclusion of the long term operating contract for the Power Block
component; and






WHEREAS, In its report dated February 23, 2011, HDR Engineering Inc. (HDR), a firm
recognized for its experience in planning and implementing recent life extension refurbishment
projects at comparable resource recovery facilities in Detroit and Honolulu, recommended a
reserve for scheduled capital equipment overhauls, annual or periodic capitalized maintenance
projects, of $4.0 to $4.5 million dependent on events requiring significant capital investment,
“HDR Recommended Capital Reserve”; and

WHEREAS, In its report dated May 24, 2012, HDR documented the condition of the Power
Block facility based upon a Mid-Conn Facility Assessment it conducted on March 29" and 30™,
2012, which report identified an initial punch list of items requiring maintenance or repairs,
which in its professional opinion would reasonably be expected to be completed by the then-
current operator of the Power Block, which initial punch list included 52 numbered items
estimated to cost $3,520,000 including contingency to complete, which items are not considered
to be scheduled capital equipment overhauls, annual or periodic capitalized maintenance projects
as contemplated under the HDR Recommended Capital Reserve, but a substantial portion of
which items are eligible capital expenditures under the Facilities Modification Reserve; and

WHEREAS, In its report dated June 21, 2012, HDR documented the condition of the Power
Block facility based upon a Mid-Conn Facility Supplemental Assessment it conducted on June
7% 8™ and 12" 2012, which report identified a final punch list of items remaining to be
addressed, which in its professional opinion would reasonably be expected to have been
completed before the May 31, 2012 expiration of the then-current contract for operation of the
Power Block, by the then-current contract operator of the Power Block, which final punch list
included 64 numbered items estimated to cost $4,159,000 including contingency to complete,
which items are not considered to be scheduled capital equipment overhauls, annual or periodic
capitalized maintenance projects as contemplated under the HDR Recommended Capital
Reserve, but a substantial portion of which items are eligible capital expenditures under the
Facilities Modification Reserve; and

WHEREAS, Such June 21, 2012 report also documented numerous items removed from the
Power Block that should have been left behind including tools, spare parts in inventory and
consumables that would create nuisance hardships for a new operator and jeopardize boiler
availability, which items are not considered to be scheduled capital equipment overhauls, annual
or periodic capitalized maintenance projects as contemplated under the HDR Recommended
Capital Reserve, but some of which items are eligible capital expenditures under the Facilities
Modification Reserve; and

WHEREAS, a new contract operator of the Power Block facility (NAES Corporation)
undertook a transition process and effectively assumed control of operating and maintenance
responsibilities for the Power Block upon expiration of the prior contract on May 31, 2012; and

WHEREAS, prior to conclusion of the Mid Connecticut Project on November 15, 2012, NAES
Corporation began work on certain final punch list items including, but not limited to, soot
blower, conveyor, lighting and roof refurbishments which work was funded through the Mid
Connecticut Project Facilities Modification Reserve; and






WHEREAS, after commencement of the CSWS on November 16, 2012, NAES continued work
on certain final punch list items including, but not limited to, spare parts inventory replacement,
baghouse refurbishment, additional soot blower and conveyor work, boiler 13 structural and roof
repair and replacement, and feed water pump repairs totaling $1,921,162.62 funded from the
CSWS Capital Expenditure Reserve within the first year of CSWS operations, which work was
generally completed within the first year of CSWS operations, and which work is considered a
legacy of, and chargeable to, the Mid Connecticut Project; and

WHEREAS, after commencement of the CSWS on November 16, 2012, NAES undertook
overhaul work within Boilers 11, 12 and 13 including, but not limited to, generation bank, super
heater, water wall and tube replacements totaling $986,490.00 funded from the CSWS Capital
Expenditure Reserve within the first two months of CSWS operations, which work was
completed within the first four months of CSWS operations, which work is considered a legacy
of, and chargeable to, the Mid Connecticut Project; and

WHEREAS, funding of final punch list items, inventory replacement and immediate term
overhaul work from the CSWS Capital Expenditure Reserve has impaired such fund’s ability to
serve its intended purpose as identified in the February 23, 2011 HDR Report and previous
actions of this Board; and

WHEREAS, such impairment has been quantlﬁed in the amount of $1,647,394.53 as detailed on
Exhibit A attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, The Authority has previously renamed the CSWS Capital Expenditure Reserve to
the CSWS Improvement Fund, and

WHEREAS, The Authority now desires that the Mid Connecticut Project reimburse the CSWS
Improvement Fund for such impairment.

NOW THEREFORE, be it

RESOLVED: That management is authorized to transfer the amount of $1,647,394.53 from
the Mid Connecticut Project Operating Account to the CSWS Improvement Fund.

Director Shanley said this item has been under discussion for some time. He explained the
Finance Committee requested more detail on the work which was done at the plant and how that work
related specifically to wear and tear during the Mid-Conn Project and how that could also be related to
investments that should have been made by the past operator. Director Shanley thanked management for
the requested detail and noted that the Finance Committee fully supported this resolution.

Director Painter asked if MIRA had considered legal action against the former operator for
failure to maintain properly. Mr. Kirk said the prior Board declined to pursue the action after substantial
consideration of the matter. Mr. Daley said the proposed resolution would not prevent such an action in

the future.

Vice-Chairman Barlow asked if this resolution details bringing inventory back up to the
appropriate level. Mr. Daley replied yes.






The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Vice-Chairman Barlow, Director Adams, Director Cruz-Aponte, Director Eno, Director Hayden,
Director Painter and Director Shanley voted yes.

Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain |

Chairman Stein
Vice-Chairman Barlow
John Adams

Marilynn Cruz-Aponte
Ralph Eno

Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley

| XX > | XX > | X

Ad-Hoc
Bob Painter, CSWS Project X

RESOLUTION REGARDING COST BENEFIT ANALYSIS EXAMINING THE TIMING OF
MAJOR MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES AND RESOLUTION INCREASING THE CSWS
CAPITAL BUDGET FOR FY 2016

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above referenced item. The motion to approve was
made by Director Shanley and seconded by Director Hayden.

WHEREAS, The Authority has previously adopted a Fiscal Year 2016 Operating and Capital
Budget (Budget) for the Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS); and

WHEREAS, The Authority is in the process of considering and developing a Fiscal Year 2017
Budget for the CSWS; and

WHEREAS, Such budget development process includes developing a schedule for shutting
down and conducting capital equipment maintenance activity within each of the three boilers
(Units 11, 12 and 13) comprising part of the CSWS Resource Recovery Facility, with each such
shut down being referred to as a “Major Outage”; and

WHEREAS, Such schedule is generally designed with the goal of conducting a Major Outage
upon each boiler every twelve months; and

WHEREAS, The last Major Outage for Unit 13 was conducted in October 2015 during which
new techniques and products for the repair and improvement of air heater systems were
conducted which have since proven to significantly increase boiler performance, and
consequently, potential energy output from the CSWS Resource Recovery facility; and

WHEREAS, Unit 11 has experienced similar air heater constraints that have diminished its

performance in the same manner Unit 13 performance had diminished prior to its last Major
Outage but Unit 11 is not scheduled for a similar air heater rebuild until April 2017; and

5






WHEREAS, Management has conducted a cost benefit analysis examining the impacts of
maintaining the current schedule of Major Outages versus i) moving up the Unit 11 outage,
including the air heater rebuild, by 6 months to October 2016 in place of a planned Major Outage
on Unit 13; or ii) expanding the scope of Unit 11°s planned April 2016 Major Outage to include
the air heater rebuild, which analysis is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, Management has determined based on such cost benefit analysis that it is not
beneficial to move up the Unit 11 outage, including the air heater rebuild, by 6 months to
October 2016 because the incremental costs of additional life extension work required to delay
Unit 13’s Major Outage exceeds the incremental revenue projected to be derived through
improved performance on Unit 11; and

WHEREAS, Management has determined based on such cost benefit analysis that it is
beneficial to expand the scope of the planned April 2016 Major Outage on Unit 11 to include the
air heater rebuild because the incremental costs of additional life extension work required to
delay Unit 13’s Major Outage is avoided, improved boiler performance will increase revenue
generated in the fourth quarter of FY 2016 and all of FY 2017 by approximately $1.3 million,
and the total cost for Major Outages paid through the FY 2017 budget will be reduced by
approximately $0.58 million.

NOW THEREFORE, be it

RESOLVED: That management is authorized to transfer $82,605.47 from the Property
Division General Fund to the CSWS Improvement Fund; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the CSWS Capital Budget for FY 2016 is hereby increased
by $1,730,000 from $9,452,004 to 11,182,004.

Director Shanley said this analysis was done to demonstrate that accelerating an investment into
air heater technology would make sense fiscally. He explained the improvements would generate
adequate revenue to justify moving the funds from the reserve fund.

Mr. Kirk said this is a change in schedule to advance an outage as the previous motion provides
funding availability for management to advance this schedule and work on a replacement of the air
heater modules in Unit 11. He explained the work which was completed in Unit 13 has demonstrated the
expected substantial improvement in performance. Mr. Kirk said management expects that similar
improvements would be seen after the work in Unit 11. He said the improvements increase revenue
substantially because of the capacity of the plant improves with the change. Mr. Kirk said this is not
additional spending but advancement of budgeted planned improvements.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Vice-Chairman Barlow, Director Adams, Director Cruz-Aponte, Director Eno, Director Hayden,
Director Painter, and Director Shanley voted yes.






Nay | Abstain

>
<
o

Directors

Chairman Stein
Vice-Chairman Barlow
John Adams

Marilynn Cruz-Aponte
Ralph Eno

Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley

2| X | X[ | | x| X

Ad-Hoc
Bob Painter, CSWS Project

b

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Chairman Stein requested a motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation.
The motion was made by Director Adams and seconded by Director Shanley and was approved
unanimously.

Chairman Stein asked the following people to join the Directors in the Executive Session:

Tom Kirk

Mark Daley

Peter Egan

Laurie Hunt

Chris Shepard, Environmental Compliance Manager
Doug Pelham, Esq.

The motion was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman Stein, Vice-Chairman Barlow,
Director Adams, Director Cruz-Aponte, Director Eno, Director Hayden, Director Painter, and Director
Shanley voted yes.

Directors

>
<

e | Nay | Abstain

Chairman Stein
Vice-Chairman Barlow
John Adams

Marilyn Cruz-Aponte
Ralph Eno

Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley

X< X[ X XX | X[ X| X

Ad-Hoc
Bob Painter, CSWS Project

x







The Executive Session began at 9:56 a.m. and concluded at 11:15 a.m. Chairman Stein noted that
no votes were taken in Executive Session.

The meeting was reconvened at 11:15 a.m. The door was opened, and the Board Secretary and
all members of the public were invited back in for the continuation of public session.

DISCUSSION OF CSWS FY 2017 DRAFT BUDGET DEVELOPMENT MATERIAL

Mr. Kirk said MIRA has a requirement under the Tier 1-4 agreements to inform the member
towns of their tipping fees by the end of February. He said the Finance Committee had provided
direction at its last meeting and management hopes to come to a consensus today to ensure approval at
the Feb. 18, 2016, Board meeting.

Mr. Kirk said the budget anticipates the $3.00 tip fee increase. Director Eno said that the $3.00
increase puts the towns over the threshold for opting out. Mr. Daley said in the strategic plan
management anticipated a 1.5% increase in the base opt-out price through a CPI adjustment. He said for
the second year in a row the CPI index required in the Municipal Service Agreements actually declined.
Mr. Daley said this year the index used to adjust the opt -ut price went down a third of a percent.

Mr. Daley said the premise of this budget is that we proceed with the expanded scope for Unit
11°s overhaul including air heater replacement this April. He said this produced a reduction in FY 2017
capital budget and an increase in the expected energy output from the plant.

Director Shanley said clear communication to MIRA’s customers detailing the difficulties MIRA
is facing due to the economy is necessary. Chairman Stein agreed and suggested outreach meetings may
best accomplish that. After a substantial discussion the Board asked that management reduce budgeted
expenses as necessary to limit the tip fee increase to $2.00 to avoid exceeding the opt-out disposal fee
and to also eliminate the budgeted recycling rebate to reduce the required draw from the Tip Fee
Stabilization Fund by approximately $240,000.

RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING ON CALL ECONOMIC ADVISORY CONSULTANTS
FOR THREE YEARS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2019

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above resolution. The motion to approve was made by
Director Shanley and seconded by Director Hayden.

RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to execute agreements with the following
firms for on-call Economic Advisory and Consulting Services, substantially as presented and
discussed at this meeting:

Alternative Resources, Inc.

Connecticut Economic Resource Center
Environmental Capital, LLC
Gershman, Brickner & Bratton, Inc.
HDR Engineering, Inc.






Mr. Kirk said MIRA is staffing its stable of contractors. He said there is no money associated
with this resolution.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Vice-Chairman Barlow, Director Adams, Director Eno, Director Hayden, Director Painter, and
Director Shanley voted yes.

>
<

Directors e | Nay | Abstain

Chairman Stein
Vice-Chairman Barlow
John Adams

Ralph Eno

Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley

2| X X< ¢ | X | X

Ad-Hoc
Bob Painter, CSWS Project

b

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

Mr. Kirk said no environmental safety or public health events occurred during the reporting
period. He referred the Board to the Supplemental Package for further information on the reports.
Director Shanley asked that the Supplemental Packages be posted to the website going forward.

Mr. Kirk said the significant power production improvement (about 15%) is associated with the
air unit change out to Unit 15. He said electrical power pricing continues to be very poor. Mr. Kirk said
spot prices are marginally better than years past but the worst priced months are yet to come.

Mr. Kirk said concerning the RFP process with the CT DEEP management has been working
with the CT DEEP to answer questions from the various bidders and providing tours of the facility. He
said MIRA is evaluating potential for participation in a solar energy development RFP issued by the CT
DEEP focused on landfills for a 2 megawatts solicitation. Mr. Kirk said MIRA has been contacted for
possible participation at three of their landfills. He said management is optimistic that they will be able
to find a vendor interested in participating and potentially allow MIRA to lease its land and develop
further solar projects.

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Stein requested a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion to adjourn was made by
Director Shanley seconded by Director Eno and was approved unanimously

The motion previously made and seconded was approved unanimously by roll call. Chairman
Stein, Vice-Chairman Barlow, Director Adams, Director Eno, Director Hayden, Director Nunn, and
Director Painter voted yes.






Directors Aye | Nay | Abstain
Chairman Stein X ;
Vice-Chairman Barlow X !
John Adams X

Ralph Eno X

Jim Hayden X

Andy Nunn X

Ad-Hoc

Bob Painter, CSWS Project X

There being no other business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 12:15 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Mgdira Kenney
Assistant HR Manager/Board Administrator

10






TAB 2






RESOLUTION FOR THE MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGARDING ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2017 AUTHORITY BUDGET

WHEREAS, The Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (MIRA) is contractually obligated to adopt
Disposal Fees for its Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS) member towns on or before February 29,
2016; which fees will apply during MIRAs fiscal year 2017 which begins July 1, 2016 and ends June 30,

2017; and

WHEREAS, such Disposal Fees are to reflect the net cost of operation of the CSWS as defined in the
Municipal Service Agreements between CSWS member towns and MIRA, which net cost of operation
includes a properly allocable share of MIRA’s general administrative expenses commonly known as the
“Authority Budget”; and

WHEREAS, in order for MIRA to progress timely with the evaluation and establishment of Disposal Fees
for the CSWS member towns it is necessary for MIRA to adopt the Authority Budget for fiscal year 2017
at this time including the budget for personnel and non-personnel services that comprise MIRA’s general
administrative expenses and the amounts thereof that are properly allocable to MIRA projects and
divisions that will be active during fiscal year 2017 including:

Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS)
Mid Connecticut Project

Property Division

Landfill Division

09, il G Hi

NOW THEREFORE, be it

RESOLVED: That the fiscal year 2017 Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority Operating Budget
attached hereto as Exhibit A be adopted substantially in the form as presented and discussed at this

meeting.



EXHIBIT A

M I R " Final Budget Development - February 11, 2016 Finance Committee
‘ ‘ Proposed Total Personnel Services

Mauteorials Innovation and Recycling Authority )
Proposed Authority Budget

Increase or Decrease From

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2015 Actual FY 2016 Adopted

Actual Adopted Proposed S % S %
Personnel Services
Charged Direct to Projects S 2,382,016 | S 2,018578 | S 1,870,520 | S {£11,496)| -21.5%| 5 (148,058} -7.3%
Indirect via Authority Budget S 2,659,356 | $ 3,225,269 | $ 2,875,983 | § 216,627 81%| S  (349,286)| -10.8%
Total S 5,041,372 | S 5,243,847 | $ 4,746,503 | S {294,869)| -5.8%|S {497,344)| -9.5%
Authority Budget
indirect Personnel Services* ) 2,659,356 | S 3,225,269 | § 2,875,983 | & 216,627 81%| S (349,286)| -10.8%
Non Personnel Services $ 1115744 | S 1,604400 [$ 1263123 [$ 147,379 | 13.2%|$  (341,277)| -21.3%
Total S 3,775,100 | 4,829,669 | $ 4,139,106 | § 364,006 9.6%|$  (690,563)| -14.3%
Combined Personnel and Nan
Personnel Services S 6,157,116 | S 6,848,247 | S 65,009,626 | § (147,490)| -24%|$ (838621)| -12.2%

Personne) Services

The FY 2017 total propesed Persennel Services budget of $4,746,503 reflects a 5.8% reduction from FY 2015 actual audited
Personnel Services and a 9.5% reduction from the FY 2016 adopted budget for Personnel Services. The reduction in Personnel
Services was achieved primarity through position eliminations, consolidations and reduced funding for employee medicai. Total
Personnel Services includes regular payrofl and overtime, payroll taxes, employee benefits, the cost to administer employee
benefits and a modest provision for market progression adjustments evaluated on case by case basis. See Exhibit 1 for the
breakdown of total Personnel Services and the longer term trend, and Exhibit 1A for a comparison of the salary roster between FY
2016 and FY 2017 budgets. The budget also includes provision for contributions to the Health Savings Accounts of MIRA employees
that selected its new high deductibie health plan. The budget funds 50% of the maximum annual contribution. Personnel Services
are allocated among the various projects and divisions that comprise MIRA on a direct and indirect basis. Direct allocation is used
. when positions are dedicated solely to a specific project / function (CSWS scale operator positicns being a good example}, Indirect
" allocations are used when positions serve multiple projects and divisions (finance and accounting positions being a good example).

i Authority Budget

The Authority Budget comprises the indirect portion of the Personnel Services budget described (and highlighted) above and a!l Non
Personnel Services not directly associated with a specific project or division. Non Personnel Services include such expenses as office
rent, office supplies, postage and printing, customer service activities, temporary services, insurance, brokerage and consulting.
The proposed Non Personnel Services budget of $1,263,123 reflects a 13.2% increase in comparison to FY 2015 actual audited
expenses and a 21.3% decrease in comparison to the FY 2016 budget. See Exhibit 2 for the breakdown of Non Personnel Services.
The total proposed Authority Budget for FY 2017 is $4,139,106 which represents a 9.6% increase from FY 2015 actual and a 14.3%
decrease from the FY 2016 budget. FY 2017 combined personnel and non-personnel services are down 2.4% in comparison to FY
2015 actual and down 12.2% in comparison to the FY 2016 budget.

Allocation / Revenue Requirements

Exhibit 3 depicts the benchmark ratios used to allocate the $4,139,106 proposed Authority Budget for FY 2017 among the projects
| and divisions that will be active during FY 2017. This now excludes the Southeast Project. Exhibit 4 depicts the dollar amount of the
Authority Budget allocated to each project and division on the basis of these benchmarks. Also shown is the allocation of Direct

personnel Services made on the basis of dedicated function.

Long Term Plan Comparison

The FY 2017 total proposed budget for personnel and non persannel services is $294,565 (4.7%) less than the long term plan target
for FY 2017 of $6,304,191.

* FY 2015 actual includes all current year charges. Excludes $178,854 adjustrnent to orior year Mid Ct. allocation reflected audit report

Page 1 of 5 pages




£ 000000 %%

C000'0ST Y

1 0000085'v8

L000'0SLYS

©000000°S%

- 000°0STSY

000'005°SH

0000SL'sE

000'000°9%
0N005T'9%
sasuddX 7y $3DIAIIG [PUHOSAAY LIAL - ZI AL VHIW
($28°999°¢) § LY9'EEI'PE § OH008LE § o,
(8£97055) § |%8€8 TLEIBOS § [%EE s 01072685 § STAN
(LLTvOr) § [0S 60808 § %9611 98L7906°S § 1A
($+9°06) $ %860 6L POR'S § PLO'GOL'Y § €A
(065°98%) § %690~ 081086 § TOL 89 § AT
($69°08L) § %8671 STEC06S § |%o6r'T 010°€59'9 § 1AL
(086°69%) by 0rz1e09 § 0T 1619 § OTA
unowmy R ¢Talll) _-:_::_< uun—\u:_ ﬁoan—o—u/\ .:3>
au:a.-u._.—_n_ _==-u< -0...:!;—

VLV

SOSWIA LD -

ISTHVAINOD TV IRIOLSIT

YRV 6" (rreLoY) COSOPL $  LER'EPT'S § SADIAUAS TANNOSUHAL TVILOL
YoE8ST- nns'si) ms'tr 00009 § S150D PALPY-IYIVIG JAYI() 1EI0NUS
%EER 00s'e § npseE 000°0€¢ $ IO DONRASTHITPY SNjoudY
%00 - (000'8) $ 00071 $000°0T $ mmsuo) (N10y
200001 (oo $ E $ 000701 § uonEnsiunupy j [k
SIS0 PARTR[ITIUE] DYIO
Yol E P (5L1°8) § sap'st $  DO9'EE § SNPUg 1DYIO [R10IYNG
ATIAE PLRRSD) § S9T'186 & GE1'0FI'1 § %1500 sujauag akojdury paogng
ONIE (€£0' 1Y) § a0z & L0E's9E § uoungIuey ¥-10F
SLE S (IPR°L11)  § 166°€59  § TESILL & 150 SIPUIE PEAT 1IN
YL 171 € PEO'LE § eoresy & (ivcozr) 8 SUOTINGLIUO, ) ENAC] P [RALpalA dakojdu)
%Iy L1 (SLY'sS1)  $ RO0°LEL  §  €L5°T68 8 §150,) WAL QIR WO,
Y%L R 061°¢ $ o610z & 000°LL [ no-1dQ (Ea1pan
1€l (pee'n) $  pIR'® $ 810 8 UOISIA
2%EE 6T osLL)  § viL'ty $ vLv'oy 8 U1 Ang ‘(11T (LS V] dseg]
Yaly €T (1er'881)  § 01sale  § ivev08  § [BRIR(T 3 |BAIPON
%00°001 0S8°9Y ¢ osRiRy & 2 $ UONNQILLO ) VS
YoS8L (SeL'P1E)  § €1LS69°E S gO1'01I0'F § J10qe'] |I0IGNg
%9601 (Sve'87)  $ R9TSYZ  § €ITwit %
%C8 9 Aom.m,: w —.vv.n.-w_ w ccxno_ m ::::m:uaz_o.u:_o:_%o_a:_u::,_,v
%06 01- (pe6'17) & w8inil & Let'ior 8 Amnaag eroog
%99°01- (199°¢) CAL S S T R § Xe| QINPON
SAXE [ J[OTAE] PoTR|ay] JOqU' |
%S9 L (058°687)  § SPOOSKE §  SO8'SEL'E §
%00 0¢- ©o0'st)  $ 000°SE $ 00008 3 (1eak soud uodn pasegr) [0k DUIIA(QY
Y%L991- oo'on)  $  ondns % 00009 $ siusunsnipy vaw posodog
%00 001 - 4 - $ - $ SASROIOU] |00 ] [RIDUSY / HIDA]
Y%61'L- (058°097)  § P09 € & S6R'STYE § (oaea] Fwipniow) [jorkeg 1enday
M 9, RRIENEITITY] pasndoag (1A0 pmdopy 91 &,

LADANG ADTARAS TANNOSHAL 'TVIOL
AASOIOU LI0T AA

ALIRHOWLAY ONITIDADAT (INV NOLLVAONNI STVIIALVIN

1 LIFITXH

Page 2 of 5 pages



EXHIBIT 2

MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

FY 2017 PROPOSED

TOTAL NON PERSONNEL SERVICES BUDGET

Increase or Decrease From

ACTUAL ADOPTED | PROPOSED FY 2015 Actual FY 2016 Adopted
Description FY15 FYli6 FY17 S % S %

Postage and Delivery Fees $ 11,975 | $ 14,000 | § 15410 | §  3.435 29%| § 1,410 10%
Telecommunications k) 54,752 | $ 67,000 | $ 68,200 [ § 13,448 25%| $ 1,200 2%
Copier $ 6,848 | S 12.000 | $ 10,000 | & 3,152 46%| $  (2,000)] -17%
Printing Services 5 6.246 | § 7.000 | § 580018 (446) 7% S (1,200) -17%
Advertising - Legal Notices/Recruitment ) 5971 [ 13,000 | $ 11,000 [ §  5.029 84%| $  (2,000)| -15%
Customer Service 5 7,648 | $ 45000 | $ 4500013 37,352 | 488%| 3 - 0%
Office Supplies $ 12,609 | $ 22000 | % 16,000 | $ 3,391 27%1 8 (6.0000] -27%
Protect Clothing/Safety Equipment ) - $ b - S 100%]| $ - 100%
Miscellaneous Services $ 6,356 | $ 10,000 | $ 7,500 | $ 1,144 18%([ 38 (2,500)| -25%
Subscript/Publ/Ref. Material hY 9,896 | § 19,500 | 3 17,400 | § 7,504 76%| & (2,100} -11%
Dues-Professional Organizations $ 4,883 | $ 9.200 | $ 7,100 | $ 2,212 45%| $  (2,100) -23%
Business Meetings and Travel $ 3,830 | $ 6,500 | $ 6,050 % 2170 56%| $ 430 7%
Training 3 6,143 | $ 8,000 | S 7,400 | § 1,257 20%| S (600 -8%
Payroll Software Services b 12,266 | $ 14,600 | 8 13,000 | $ 734 6% 3 (1,000 -7%
Record Retention Services $ 4346 | 3 13,000 | S 11,500 | $ 7,154 | 165%|$ (1,500)| -12%
Mileage Reimbursement s 1,848 | § 7,500 | $ 5700 |3 3,852 | 208%| 8§ (1,800)| -24%
Vehicle Repair/Maintenance $ 886 | 4,500 | $ 5,000 | $ 4114 | 464%]| % 500 11%
Office Equipment Service by - $ 2,000 1% 3,000 | % 3,000 100%] $ 1,000 50%
Building Operations 3 7,133 1% 60,500 | § 7,000 | § (133 -2%| 8 (53,500)f -88%
Insurance Claims/Losses $ - $ 3,000 | § - $ 100%| $  (3,000)| -100%
Bad Debt Expense 3 - M) § - $ 100%] $ - 100%
Rent $ 299,185 18 300,000 |3 174,063 | $(125,122)] -42%]| $ (125,937)| -42%
Fuel for Vehicles $ 5,663 | § 8,000 | § 10,000 | § 4,337 77%| $ 2,000 25%
Temporary Agency Services $ 187385 (% 16,000 | $ 1,000 | $ (186,385)| -99%{ $ (15,000)] -94%
Insurance Premiums 3 34,520 [ § 186,000 | & IS2100 [$ 117,580 | 341%| S (33,900} -18%
Information Technology Consultant $§ 456338 60,0008 60,000 % 14,367 31%| $ - 0%
Information Technology Maintenance hY 77,249 1 $ 75,000 | § 74,200 | §  (3,049) -4%| § 800)| -1%
Legal Fees $ 106317 (8 375000 (% 200000 (% 93,683 88%| $ (175,000)| -47%
Auditor $ 47210|$% 80,000 |8 52,000 (% 4,790 10%| $ (28,000)| -35%
Insurance Consulting/Brokerage 3 728518 9,700 | § 8700 | $ 1,415 19%1$  (1,000)] -10%
Engineering, Technology & Consulting $ 83,3351 3% 73,000 | $ 110,000 [ $ 26,665 32%| $ 37,000 51%
Vehicles $ $ 5 - $ - 100%]| $ 100%
Office Furniture $ B - b - $ 100%| $ - 100%
Computer Hardware $ 37958 (8% 22,000 (% 16,000 | § (21,958)] -58%[ % (6,000) -27%
Computer Software 3 $ 22,000 | $ 14,000 | $§ 14,000 100%| § (8,000)] -36%
Debt Service - Principal 3 $ A 3 100%| $ 100%
Other Equipment $ $ 20,000 |3 14,000 | $ 14,000 | 100%| % (6,000)| -30%
Trustee / Bank Fees $ 20,313 1 % 20,000 | $ 15,000 | § (5,313)] -26%| 3% (50000 -25%
Debt Service - Interest 3 $ b - $ - 100%] $ - 100%
Operational Contingency $ - $ $ 100,000 (% 100,000 | 100%|$ 100,000 | 100%

Subtotal Non-Personnel Services| $ 1,115,744 | $ 1,604,400 | $ 1,263,123 | § 147,379 13%] $ (341,277)| -21%

Page 3 of 5 pages




%00°00T %ST YT %119 %000 %82°€ %9£°9/ 3unydiam parsnipy (2101
%00°00 %00°00T. %00°00T %00°00T %00°00T 3unydam anaenwind

%0°SC %Y T %00 %0°0 %00 %9'€T 3unydiam pansnipy
%0°ST %0°'ST %0°ST %0°5¢ %0°ST 3unysdiam

%0°'00T %9°S %00 %0°0 %0'0 %Y 'v6 a8e1uadId

81 T - - LT s3udjeAInby swiy |In4

=t — =

%0°ST %l'L %3'T %00 %E'T %6'ET 3unysm pAsSnipy

%0°ST %0°ST %0°ST %0°5C %0°ST Junysizm

%0001 %E 87 %L'L %00 %16 %5°SS 33eIUadI9d
g - 661°S SUOIIDBSURL |

“BunyBom pars

...x\l..w:

%Y %E¥ %00 %9°S nipy

%0'ST %0°ST %0°ST %0'ST %0°ST Bunydiam
%0°00T %E LT %6'8C %00 %E'9 %t LE ade1uadIad
L6079 ¥/6'9T 8G6°LT S = S| ev6'e S S GTA4 S1955Y JUaLN)) |BIOL

“Bunydiem parsnipy

S e b e i b e ——

T G T e

%0°'ST xo...o

%0°ST %0°ST %0°ST %0'ST %0°ST Bunysism
%0001 %Z'TT %00 %00 %E0 %G 88 EECIUERIER]

= I s | zee s | £2¥'09 S GTA3 Senuanay dunesado |exo)

%001 %00 %00 %00 %00 %0'0T 3unyiam passnipy

%001 %001 %001 %001 %0'0T dunysiam
%0001 %0°0 %0°0 %00 %00 %0001 EBIENEY
75279 - - - - 75279

|BN3OY STA4 Suoj 3utpAdray

%001 %00 %0°0 %00 %00 %00T BunySiam pasnipy
%001 %001 %001 %007 %001 3unusiem
%0°00T %0°0 %00 %00 %0°0 %0001 EESUERIED]
9TE'€59 /12 = - : 660'€59 [BNIOY GTAd SUOL MSIN
|1exo} uoising Apadosd | 18foig uoy-piy 1SE3YINOS uoIsIng (ypuel SMSD

{s3unowiy § uo paniwo Qo)
1350aN49 LTOZA4

NOISIAIG / 123f0¥d A8 ADOT10AQ0HLIW NOLLYIOTTV 3ISNIdX3 1I3HIAN]I AYYINIYd VHIN
ALIYOHLINY SNITDADIY ANV NOILYAONNI STYINILVIN

€ L9IHX3

Page 4 of 5 pages



EXHIBIT 4

'

MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

FY 2017 PROPOSED

ALLOCATION OF AUTHORITY BUDGET & DIRECT PERSONNEL SERVICES

Total Authority Budget b 4,139,106
Indirect Allocation Authority Budget

Project / Division Benchmarked Percent Allocation
Mid-Connecticut 6.11%| $ 252,899
Southeast Project 0.00%| $ -
Landfill Division 3.28%]| S 135,763
Property Division 14.25%| $ 589,823
CSWS 76.36%| $ 3,160,621
Total Authority Budget 100.00%] $ 4,139,106
Total Direct Personnel Services $ 1,870,520

Direct Personnel Service Allocation

Project / Diviston Function FY 2016 Budget
Mid-Connecticut $ -
Southeast Project $ .
Landfill Division $ -
Property Division Operations Staff - Jets $ 173,524
CSWS Operations Staff - CSWS $ 1,696,996
Total Direct Personnel Services $ 1,870,520
Combined Authority Budget and Direct Personnel Services A 6,009,626

Overall Total

Project / Division Allocation Percent Allocated Cost
Mid-Connecticut 4.21%| $ 252,899
Southeast Project 0.00%]| $ -
Landfill Division 2.26%| $ 135,763
Property Division 12.70%| $ 763,346
CSWS 80.83%] $ 4,857,618
Total Direct Personnel Services 100.00%]| $ 6,009,626

Page 5 of 5 pages



TAB 3






RESOLUTION FOR THE MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGARDING ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2017

CSWS DIVISION OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGETS

RESOLVED: That the Fiscal Year 2017 Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority Operating and
Capital Budget attached hereto as Exhibit A be adopted substantially in the form as presented in Exhibit
B attached hereto and discussed at this meeting.






MATERIALS INNOVATION AND
RECYCLING AUTHORITY

EXHIBIT A

CSWS Division

FY 2017 Budget
Development

February 11, 2016

MIRA Finance
Committee







SUMMARY PROPOSED BUDGET

w Total Operating Revenues -

Total Operating Expenses -

Operating Income Before Reserve Contributions -

m Proposed Reserve Contributions
CSWS Debt Setrvice Fund -
< CSWS General Fund:

&

£

kS

b

"

CSWS Improvement Fund - $10.3 Million
CSWS Risk Fund - $ 0
CSWS Legal Fund - $ O
CRRA Severance Fund - $ O
CSWS Tip Fee Stabilization Fund - $ (5.2 Million)
CSWS General Fund Retained - $ O

@ $2.00 Per Ton Increase From FY 2016 Tip Fee

$63.5 Million
$58.3 Million

$5.2 Million

$0.0 Million
$5.2 Million






SUMMARY PROPOSED BUDGET

Cost of Operation - $68,636,094
« Operating Expense Budget - $58,315,389 ($434,997, 0.74% Reduction)
< Reserve Contributions - $10,320,705 ($868,701, 9.2% Increase)
Net Increase - $433,704 / 0.64%

Non Disposal Fee Revenue - $38,902,873
= $4,568,727, 10.5% Decrease
» Includes $40,000 Member Service Fees (Tier 2 @ $2.00 & Tier 4 @ $1.00 / Ton)

Net Cost of Operation - $29,733,221
~ $5,002,431 / 20.2% Increase from FY 2016

Add: Cost of Service Discounts - $ 413,000
« Tier 1 Long - 204,000 Tons @ $2.00 / Ton; and
Tier 3 - 2,500 Tons @ $2.00 / Ton

Deduct: Deficit Funded by Stabilization Fund - $ (5,165,221)

Note: Equivalent Subsidy of Uniform Base Disposal Fee - $ (13.55 / ton)

MIRA “shall set the Base Disposal Fee such that the product of the Base Disposal Fee and the

Aggregate Tons, shall produce funds estimated as sufficient to pay the estimated Net Cost of
Operation”






SUMMARY PROPOSED BUDGET

® TJotal Rate Base -

Net Cost of Operation & Cost of Service Discounts

= Aggregate Tons -
* Service Discounted (Tier 1 Long & Tier 3) -
Gate Rate (Tier 1 Short) -
+ $2 Service Fee (Tier 2) -
* $1 Service Fee (Tier 4) -
+ Total -

®= Uniform Base Disposal Fee -

206,500
145,000

13,000
~14,000
378,500

FY 2017 Base Opt Out

$24,981,100

378,500

$66.00 / Ton

FY 2017 Total Opt Out
(With Additional Opt Out Costs)

Contract FY 2017 Proposed
Disposal Fee
Tier 1 Long $64.00
Tier 1 Short $66.00
Tier 2 $68.00
Tier 3 $64.00
Tier 4 $67.00

®= Total Member Disposal Fees -

$61.95
$63.95

n/a
n/a

n/a

$64.07

$66.07
n/a
n/a

n/a

$24,568,000
$757,000 7/ 3.2%
increase from FY 2016






OPERATING EXPENSE BUDGET

= Transfer Stations - $ 1,706,900

0.4% Increase from FY 2016

= EHington - $ 22 500
» Essex - $ 570,500
« Torrington - $ 547,400
= Watertown - $ 566.500
+ Total - $1,706,200

= Waste Transportation - $13,567,622

2.0% Decrease from FY 2016

* MSW From Essex - $ 851,370
=~ MSW From Torrington - $ 611,470
* MSW From Watertown - $ 1,529,580
* MSW From RRDD#1 - $ 20,043
* MSW From Ellington - $ 42,196
* Solid Waste Bypass - 3 58,000
* Ash Disposal - $10,375,620
= Non-Processible - $ _ 79,343
= Total - $13,567,622

= Trash to Energy Facility - $33,514,696

2.5% increase from FY 2016
Waste Processing - $11,219,171 (426,829 / 3.7% Reduction)

Power Block - $21,062,525 ($1,158,025 / 5.8% Increase)
Facility Contractor - $ 1,233,000 ($38.000 /3.2% Increase)
Total - $33,514,696 (769,196 2.3% Increase)






OPERATING EXPENSE BUDGET

= Recycling Facility - $591,215
36.2% Reduction from FY 2016
 Transport From Essex - $ 184,025
« Transport From Torrington - $ 212,940
= Transport From Watertown - $ 129,900
« Direct 0&M Expenses - $ 64,350
* Recycling Rebate - S =Y.
> Total $ 591,215
® Indirect Expense- $8,934,956
6.2% Reduction from FY 2016
* Authority Budget Allocation- $3,160,621
= MIRA Direct Personnel- $1,696,996
* MIRA Direct Non Personnel - $1,235,039 .
« Assessment, Fees and Taxes - $2,715,000
* Murphy Road Ops Center - $ 127.300
* Total $8,934,956
= Total Operating Expense Budget - $58,315,389






RECOMMENDED RESERVE

CONTRIBUTIONS

* Operating Income Before Reserve Contributions - $ 5,155,484
= CSWS Debt Service Fund - $ 0
= CSWS General Fund: $ 5,155,484

* CSWS Improvement Fund - $10,320,705
Represents Strategic Plan Update required funding adjusted for Unit 14
overhaut moved up including air heaters.

* CSWS Risk Fund - $ O

There is presently in excess of $440,000 in this fund .

Based on review with the Risk manager, this is viewed as sufficient in comparison to the
deductibles of all insurance policies other than business interruption.

No contributions to this fund are recornmended for FY 2017.

* CSWS Legal Fund - $ O

There is presently in excess of $600,000 in this fund .
This is viewed as sufficient in comparison to prior actual CSWS legal expenses
No contributions to this fund are recommended for FY 2017.

* MIRA Severance Fund - $ O

There is presently in excess of $792,000 in this fund .
This is viewed as sufficient in comparison to total FY 2017 Personnel Services.
No contributions to this fund are recommended for FY 204.7.

* CSWS Tip Fee Stabilization Fund - $ (5,165,221)
Draw expected based on second proposed draft budget parameters.
$401,,362 below Strategic Plan Update projection.

= CSWS General Fund Retained - $ 0

No surplus to retain based on current draft budget parameters






NON DISPOSAL FEE REVENUE

* Energy Sales - $18,956,400
$3,558,659, 15 8% Decrease
¥ Capacity Payments & RECs - % 2,232,000
. Real Time Market - $A6. 724,400
. Contract Sales 5 o
. Tota)l $18,956, 400
* Other Recovered Products - $2,399,828
$662,713, 21.6% Decrease
g Inbound CS5W$S Base @ $8.50 / Ton - $ 426,000
. Inbound FCR Base @ $7.50 / Ton - & 75.000
. Revenue Share (Container Sales) - 5 206,136
Revenue Share (Paper Sales) - $ 100.292
* FCR Restdue Disposal / Othe; - 5 172,800
- Other Recycling / Waste Revenue - $ 285,000
. Metal Sales - %1.135.000
Total - $2,399. 838
= Contract Waste - $14,054,400
$905,600, 6.1% Decrease
. Hauler Contracts - $9,139,200
. Other Contracts $4.815.200
Total - $14,054 400
* Spot Waste - $3,412,000
. $561,000. 19.7% Increase
* Other (Interest / Service Fees) $ 80,245
$2,755, 3.3% Decrease
* Total Non Disposal Fee Revenhue - $38,902,873






KEY DRIVERS

Trash to Energy Operations:

= Total MSW Deliveries -

RDF to Ash Production Rate -
Ash to Disposal -

“Aggregate Tons” - 378,500
Hauler Contract - 142,800
Other Contract - 95,000
Spot - 98,700
Municipal Bulky - 3,000
Total - 718,000

= Total MSW to RDF Production Rate -

= Total RDF -

= RDF to KWH Production Rate -

= Energy Production -

= Contract / Non Contract Energy Price -

| |

]

a

Ash Disposal Cost Per Ton -

Recycling Operations:

= CSWS Sourced Recyclables -

= FCR Sourced Recyclables -

718,000

98.75%

709,000

543 kwh / ton
385,000,000 kwh
$.04344 / kwh
25.1%

178,000 tons
$58.29

50,000 tons
10,000 tons






ot

Ty e S A e







9107 ‘11 Atenaqayg

LHOANI ONILVHAJO dAdSOdOdd
NOISIAId WHLSAS HLSVA dI'TOS LAJILDANNOD

LI0CT YVHA "TVDSIA

ALTHOHLAYV DONI'TOADTY ANV NOILLVAONNI STVRIALVIA

a1qiyxg







e U 008 S eu eu SUO]_ |BIOLAUTWIO ) Y )4
%00 0 - 00¢ S 00¢ S LA SNUIAY S2[BS UO] Jad Iauteiuo)) Y4
e eu 00T S eu eu DD0-anuaAY s3jeS Uo] tad soded M4
eu e - S eu eu dNQ-2NUANY SBS U0 | T4 faded Y4
eu eu 00°0¢ S eu eu SUO [BIOIAUNUOY) SAMSD
eu e/u 00° ¢S S eu eu 2NURARY SI[BS UOJ 134 JAUIBIUOD) S S
eu eu 0001 S eu e D20 - dnuaaay s3fes uo] 124 taded S S0
e B . S 009 S e/ dANQ - 2nUSAY S2]BS o 124 12ded SMSD
2000 - 0S¢ S 0SSt S eu SANU2AY U0 o] SYGR[AIAY [EIOLALIUIOT)
260070 - 068 S 06’8 S ] S2NUIATY UO 13 $3|qR[o£oY [enUapIsay sajeg Fuipphoay
e eu S00'1 e SUOJ [BIDIAUIWIO.) ¥4
eu eu 90°C ] eu SNUAADY $3|BS UOJ Io4 12UIeIu0)) ¥ )4
g eu ccpl e ey DDQ-eNURAY s3[eS U0 124 saded YD
eu eu 870°¢ eu eu JNOQ-2NUAYY 53[BS UO] 1aq Jadeq D]
g eu 9; eu eu SUO ] |BIOIRUOY) SAASD
eu eu ANl e el ANUIASY S3[BS UO] [ JAUIBIUO]) SMSD
el eu CSH'8 eu eu D00 - 2nu2A2y s2qeS uo ] 124 1aded SANSD
eu eu 95 TT gu eu ANQ - 2nuaaxy sa[es uoJ 124 Laded SMSD
%681 0cy 00L°C 08T gu 21qeadirey)) anpisay Burjadoay
g eu 004°¢ gu eu |10 2nprsay Sutjodoay SUOJ pUNoOqINQ)
eu g/l 0,C8'[ e/u e SUO] [BLOIAUIUIO) Y}
e/ eAr % 19°C eu g u 2NUIAY $A[eS U0 12J ISUIBIUO)) YO
e eu 24609°¢ eu e DD0-2MuaAY $3[BS UC] Ja] laded Y
eu el %976 eu g dNO-2anu2AY so(eg uo ] I taded ¥4
eu e %FI0 eu eu SUOJ [BrOOUNIOY) SAMSD)
e eu %07 +T eu e/u ANU2AY $2[BS U0 13 IAUIBIUO) SAMSD
eu et %LS S eu e DD0 - anuaAYy $2[eS U0, 124 Jaded SAMSD
eu B LA VA g e INQ - anUAY s2fes U0 124 saded SMSD
%000 %00°0 %05 6 %066 e onpisay SwoAo2y  SUO] punoquy Jo 2Feiudotad
%9C ¢ 000°¢ 000°09 000°L€ $60°L9 S[BLIRIETN 2[qE12402Y jeI0 ]
%000 - 000701 00070t £9L°CT (suo1) s21qe[oAoay 0jqEIda00y p2oInog I1010enu0.)
%R¢°9 000°¢ 000°0¢ 000°Ly Al (suo1) s21qeodoay 2jqeidacoy SMSD
Suissaooig Ar2alfag
%00 0§~ (00°s) 00's S 000! S 00¢ S " w0 sadipar) kraataq Supakody
SNOILVHAJO ONITOXDIY
%0070 - 00071 0001 +20°1 (1un jo raquinu) Suudg xog ssameyy; Suudg xogssassamey
%L0" [ S8¢°L 000°81L SIFOIL €49'899 MSIN[BI0L
%9¢ € €8T 00L°S Sir's 1L8F 2npisey Bulpodoay
%000 - 000701 00001 00701 (punoquy) anpisay sno2 |
%L0°9¢ 000°cT 000°c8 000719 <07°9T MSK -10dg (0dg) 1200
%00 00§ 005°C 000°€ 00¢ 00L isep Ajng jediowuny
%00'¢~ 1000°¢) 000°¢6 0007001 Fr6’to 1eNuo) YO
%L8 L™ (oocct) 008°¢HI 000°¢<1 S10°€91 12enUO; f3ney
%0070 - 008°8L¢ 008°8L¢€ 6£6°0LE ) suwo) Sunedidiire ASIN
SI-AAITIA
%60°9CC 000°09T 000 S£€ S 000°¢I N 10+7001 S 11 (OFY) supal) A512ug 3[qesmauy
%98'€ 000769 000°£88° S 0007887 S CEULSEl 8 wawided Qroede )
eu eu FEFO O S uow aq sales 6500 S 3181 1OBLIU0 )-UON,
eu et Ep TiPEo 0 S TL90°0 N A1e110eU0T
%L9'T 000°000°0T 006°000°¢8Y 000'000°¢LY 008 160°CeY PIOS 4y jeio
%<t 0 : 2 €S 1+¢ STe p2anpoId 4y JO UO YAy HAWOd
o, sjian LI 914 SIAd
125pNg §1 A4 uBll (3510 4) 2212 a3sododd a3140ay¥ VLDV STv1ad —-——1
1 e jeasig | SNOILAWNSSY
30uBLiE y

(SAASD) WALSAS ALSVM AI'TOS LNDILIANNOD - VIIIN






%00 0 = 0001 000! §CL°6 SUC] ASIN pau2aI(] g0
eu e UO_llB:)O‘[ 191[10 » UO}SJSA!C[ IEJIUDD lpnog
U 0001 000°1 2 1S¢°L 12lo1q iseapnog
%00°001" (000D - 0001 91 Aioe.] [enu=)) 1pnog SUO | A\SIA PauRal(
U -
%00 T 0¢1 0L 009 092 12100 01 A1se A 2[quss2001d-uON
%0£'C 000°% 000°8LT 000+L1 PrLEO1 Lo oysy  suoj jonpoidAg gSK
%08°L- «n gl 00T TLl MSIX peoj sad [a@N
gu e eu 000°¢ €50'C MSIN Angsties uoleyg
%0070 £ 0009 0009 4139 $2(qe|2K09Y WMOHINEM
%261 000 0007901 000°+01 0Z$'901 MSIN UmOLRIR AL
%LE"ST 000°T 0006 000L LegL $2[qe[2£92Y UOISULLIO ]
%000 = 000°L¥ 000°Lt 088°9F MSI uoIsuLIo |
%ET 9 00S 00578 000'8 PET'S S3[qeaA2aYy %8s
%0070 - 000°6¢ 000°6¢ 0¢0°8¢ MSI X553 suoj pajney
%00°001~ (00°79) S - S 0079 S - S uoue20T JANO
%000 . S 008¢ S 00'8¢ S 0088 S 192(014 15EAPNOS
%S 1 001 S 0099 S 00°¢9 S = S Qe [enua) pnog
%00 € 80°¢ S 6L7501 N A S 6 S (@91 U0l 1ad) 12y 01 2158 2|qIss3001d-UON
%L S (s¢o) S 6T8¢ S F919 S TT6S S (@® .1 uor s2d a1e1 p2pua|q) 22O 0] YSY
%181~ 00°7) S FE80I1 S bE0TIL S 99°801 N MSW peo 1ad [Ty
eu B/U eu 917 6 S 656 S /\\SV\' ug) 12d A’.qu_[[P,S;UOJEl[S
%09'0 £1°0 S 59T s ¢lc S 69°0C S $2|qe12402y uo) 12d wnanAey
%950 80°0 S Pl S Sefl S F9El S MSIK uo) 12d ussopnes
%09°0 #1 0 S 99°¢T S €T S e S $2[qe[oA>2Yy 101 1ad vorFuLLIo |
%T90 800 s 10°¢l S £6TH iy icct S MSI uot 1ad uoiBure
%09°0 €10 S S9IC S slie S #L70T S s3[qefoKoay] uoy 1ad xassy saag
%950 8070 S £FFI S Sfvl S 69°¢1 S MSIN uot 1ad xassg IMOJdSNVYL ALSVAL
%zl 000C 000°TLT 0007011 Ay a4l 1Jauag 1SOH S umop2ley
%0L°E 000C 000°9¢ 000'%S LELYS Wouaq 1SOH S uoSiuLLo]
%SL 0 00$ 00$°L9 000°L9 SR1°99 : 1Jauag ISOH S [ %ass3 sauaalaq
AR 100 $ 0850 S 0L50 S 0950 S (uo1 12d) Myeuag 150H 1 wmoHRIEAY
%L | 00 S 0850 S 0L50 § 0950 S (uoy 12d) 1g2uag 1s0H S uoIBULLIC]
%SL | 100 S 0850 S 0LSO S 0950 S (101 12d) 1gauag 1SOH G ¥2557 sa2
SINAWAVA IVJIJINTIA
%S 18t~ (szg) 05§ 929 89°0LT S ° (punoginQ) 2nusay (eI dURUAULEN eI de1dg
%S S TY- (00°291) S 00001 S 00°L9¢ S 9pSIT §  (uorsad 20ud) anuasay {e1Rpy 2oueu L)y eI de1og
%9L't 0001 000°Cc 000'tT 086'81 (punoginQ) uonsnquiod 1sod Suipnput sieIS]A snoua
% E g0 (00°¢T) S 000¢ S 00¢L S 99°09 $ (20ud U0y s2d) SnU24Y AnPISayf SNOLIA] eliile)
%,00 01 %100 %110 %0170 %1170 21BIS-J0-INQ - sk 2]QIsso01d-UON
%000 %000 %00T %00°C %SST (S JO UO | 124) (PUNOQU]) 1Y 2NPISY SNOLID]
%000 %0070 %00'€ %00°€ %8LC (MSIN JO UO] J2d) (PUNOQINQ) ABY S|eI2fY SNOLID|
%000 %000 %00°0 %000 %000 (AVSIAJO UO] 12d) 21ey] aNpIsY $823014
%¢0 0 %00'0 %E8 bT %T8+T %L1 ST (MSI Jo U0y 1) vy sV
%100 %000 %11 ST %I1 ST %€09T (4 jo uoj s2g) ey sV saney anpisay
%1£°T 000°9( 00060, 000°€69 000°CE9 paumsuo ) Jay
%8T'T 00091 0007212 000°T0L 000" 1#9 Pass2a201d MSI [B10] Pass20014 SUO |
SNOILYHAJO0 ALTTIOVA
Y, sjun LTAA 91A4 S1AM
125PNig 9] (4 URY) (3510 1) 12119 aisodoud a3irdoay IVILIY sUvYLIa

L1 4e2 [BOSI4
Joueue s

SNOLLJINISSY '

(SMSD) WALSAS ALSVA AI'TOS LNDJILLDANNOD - VHIN






Va8E'65" (0€L79LEC) S FBE'SSIS S PITIESS S I8L° IS8y § (SSOT/ FIWOOINT LAN
%L 0 L66°FEl S B8ECIL®S S 98f°06LSE S LFOC09°CS S SAYNLIANTAXT ONILLVEIRAdO TV10L
S%L1°9¢ SRy S <CITl6s S 041926 S 68C°¢0L S Ayroeg sunppazy  XAN-905-100-6F
% lt 0" (006°9) S 006790L71 S 00000L°T S T1E6°TY9'1 S SUONENS [aJSUBI]  NXXXX-XXX-|(00-6F
%000 B S 00£LCl S oogLet S 000°6€1 S Iaqua)) suonesadQ peoy Aydmi - <O16$-105-100-6F
%8¢ (000°8¢) S 0007€eT( S 000°¢s6l'l S PEL9I0'T S Sa31ey]) % S22 UDWIRBEURIN STYN XXX (06-100-6F
%890 CL6°¢ S STotle S 000616 S 0.0°¢¢8 S uonesuaduio?) aAnu2dU] AISUQ STAVN  §1LTSXXX-100-6F
YLl T (1£6'F08) S T1L6°68T°08 S 000°S8t°6T S 9968 S safireyD) Bueiad() 10BOUOY STYN  NXXXX-XXX-[00-6F
%l8'E 00t°L9 S 004784071 S 00091t S CTH'ELOT S sasuadxy Bunerad( samipoe] VIIN  XONN-XXX-[00-61
%0'C 866°08¢C S TTOLSEl S 0T9sEsEl S L6TTEFEL S uodsuer] )ses  300-0S-100-6F
%t0 1- (000°30) S 000°¢ILT S 000£89T S Lele09c S SLOTId 7% "S2IPISqnS "$92] JUSUISSISSY  XOXN-NNX-[(0-6+
%88 ¥l P9I S S0TE6 T S 8L9%FFE S LEV'OLF'C S sasuadx euonerd N1+ 100-6
%6¢ ¢ 2667011 S 129091°¢ S 8IsILTE S OIS Sbee S sasuadxy ANRNSIUNIPY  [£8/S-10$-100-6F
% suun LIAT 91 A SIAA NOILARIDSIA INNODJDV
23png 9Lad Wy (2o BuE - JFSOdOWd  03LIOQAY VLDV
RS SAUNLIANTIXT
QVUTURN
°6L9 & (LTL1I8%E) S ELR0LE'EY S 009T8TLY S 3TYESH09 S STINTALTY DNILVYALO TVIOL
Y00°0¢ 000°S S 000°¢t S 00001 S 80t°LT S auioougIsalalt - (0 [9%-000-100-6%
%1T°0C g N Y S 000°I¢ N yI1°0% S 2uloduf snoauel238IN. - OS1SH-000- [00-6F
%1871 (6€9°8S57c) S 00F956'81 S 6S0°€ISTT S ceLege’ Lt s QL3 eaX-000- 100761
%9 0T (SSF'+<T) S 8IR6L6 S olgweTt S LECYEOCTT S Ao Budi3y  (012+-000-100-6%
%ol 06T 000°CiT S 000°88¢ S 000t N Z86'16 § Buiidg vog sassanepy p isep g (edwUN 901 6+-000-100-61
%kt St (£TT0e9) S 000 EEll S cTreeL 't S £CCT9tl S saeS B12IN FO[6F-000-100-6F
%80°£C 000zl S L00°0F S 000°ce N SF8°0¢ S 33 @o1vieg fequilN | [{0F-000-100-6F
%8961 0co19¢ S 000THFY S o000 1cge S SLLLLOL S 10dg - 21sEA PUOS $BIEY ) 313G £010F-000-100-6F
%08t & (O00$FTH) S ooceley S 0000r0°¢ S U TLL Y S SIOBNUO) J2NG-3ISEM PIOS S2RIRY ) 201A2S 60 L0000 [00-6F
LS - {008°082) S 0oCecl s S 0000T66 S 0s6’zer’ar S SIENHUO Y INBH-2)SE4) PIOS Safiel ) 29LI2S G 10F-000-100-6¢
%81 ¢ 000°L8L S 0008S9StHT S 000°1(8¢T S 6L11sEeT S uAno] Sunedionieq-a1se s piog saRIey) 991095 1G104-000-100-6+
% stiun L1AA 9TAA SIAA NOILdIIDS4dd INNODDY
1RApNg 91 A uewr (o) 12U qISOdOUd dILdOAdY TvVaALOV
L rea g jeasig SC*UL H[\H}I ’
doupLE \

(SMSD) NOTSIATA IWHLSAS ALSVA AI'TOS LADILDANNOD - VIIN






‘UONIPUOD 1241 U0 paseq 212y (q)
1982)U0D pajenoSau uo paseq aiey (8)

%000 - S 00'0F S 000¥ s 0007 S (punoquy) anpisay snorf
%00 0 - S 000¢ S 000¢ B 000 < (un 12d) a8reyaung Buudg xog sassamey Eciile}
B/l e @ )] (@) 10dg
%000 - S 0058 S 00¢8 S 00¢8 S asepy Aing jediomungy
%00'0 - S 00'FS S 00¥9 S 0019 N ae4 di] s1aenuo) 13)ney
Bl eu (e) (®) aaq di] s10B1U0)) 1410
%E0°¢ 00T S 0089 S 0099 S 05895 - 00'99S 7L
e 0029 S 009 s = S - S b oLl
%ET € 00T S 00¥9 S 00T S 0079 S €13l uu-5uo 4oL
%EL'E 00CT S 0099 S 009 S 009 S UL3)-HOYS [ 491 MSW
% situn L1XA 9T xS STAJ NOILdIdOSAd INNODDY
123png 9144w (2s10) 21RE JASOdOUd AALIOAY TVNLOV
L11ea K 1edsiy >
aouvLe, | SHHA JLL '
%000 = s - T = S ISLIS8F S ADNVTIVLI
%8S 6E- (DELOLEET S F8FSSU'S S8 FlTTES8 S B FINOOINT LIN SMSD 40 ENTINASHNGSIO TV LOL
%LS 19F Oepeeet) S (lczeors) S (QeL6te) S 5 pung uonezipqes 234 dif SMSH  91TLE-000-100-6
%616 10898 S S0L°0ZE0I S POOTHE S s pung juswarosduf M S 01 UONNGUII0)  £89TC- [0S [00-6F
% siun L1AA 9LAL STAA NOILLJIdDSAa INNODJDV
123pag 9] 44 uey (25040 2128 SO40Ud  dALJOAY TYNLOY ;

1] 13 [BOSI]

20UBLIE A

FWOINI LAN SMSD 40 INTINASANESIA

(SAMSD) NOISTAIA WHLSAS ALSYM dI'TOS .LADILDANNOD - VI






31qedijdde jou e

%01 T8 178 S 6Ll S 0001 $ 00t S SSDULAIAS SNOSURY2ISIN  7OETS-105-100-6F
958 pe- (00r'7) S 0089 S 00F¥ s €579 S wawdinby 2fes Funpoyd 10A101d  11725-105-100-64
%0879 008C $ 00571 S 000'F s 4334 S sanddng 2WOQ  T0ZTS-10$-100-67
%00 D¢~ (00$°2) S 008t S 000°¢ S 785°8 S SI0IALRS BUNUL  801Z8-10¢-100-6F
%00 0 - S 001y S 00l S ¥LO°1 S s394 AI2Ara(] %9 9BeIsod  [01ZS-105-100-6F
SASNAIXA ONILVIAJO ATHLO
%1£°01- (00g'e) S 00§sE S 000°CE s SIT°0E S Angredpuawdinby pue "ASojouyda ] “BurtzamBuy [ei0jqng
%00 OF 00T S 00¢f S 00S S - S 2reMlos 1Induwio)  £34+5-10€-100-6F
% EEC (00s7e) S 000°S S 0051 S oct S aremprey induwo))  g8tHS-108-100-61
%00 0 - S 0oo0s S 000°0¢ S 6LL6T S 3V Fun[nsuo ) LBojouyoa | y FULSAUIBUT  $687C-10S-100-6
ALIDVA/INTINAINOT ANY "ADOTONHIAL "ONITANIONT
%9707 0P8°C8T S 091°660°E S 000°S8E'T S 668°1€0°L S 2duEydwo) £2010)E)G P UOHII0A] JISSY [BI0IQRS
%00 0T 000°Zt S 0008t S 000709 $ 209°6F S Io%j01g aduemsu[  ¢/87S-(0$-100-6%
%C0°0C ObFEET S 095°CE6 S 000991°t S 8S8°CEL S wnTuis1d BoURIMSU] 464 PUE 4dp 0¥9TS-105-100-6F
%000 - S 0007001 § 0007001 $ Y97 CET S 18597 9$826-105-100-61
%000 - S 00¢ S 00¢ S - S ssuadvg 192 PeG  709ZS-10S-100-6F
%00 08 000°0% S 00001 S 000°0¢ S 990711 s S2sSOTT SuNel)  <0STE-10$- (00768
%00 0% 0ot S 009 S 000°L $ o S SIIULIad $ISUINT $397  Z0SZE-105-100-6%
g - § s - ()] S 2oueuziutey waudinb3 192(01d  £0¥ZE-105-100-6%
%000 S 00sL S 00SL S ¥L9°C S SSIMON (€527 €T1TS-105-100-6
ADNVITAINOD AMOLILYIS ¥ NOILDALOYd LIASSY
%81 L1 789°¢IC S 966'969°L S 8LY0IET S SORHRTE S AVNOILYHAJO - SLIJANAD ¥ HOaVUSTIAVIVS LOIWIA  XXXXX-[0S-100-6F
SASNAIXHT TYNOILVIAJO
%6tE L667011 S 179091 § SIOILTE S 0IS'SPEE S NOILVIISINIINGY - SLIAINTE ¥ M0V VSANVIVS LOTAIANT
SASNALIXA AALLVILSININAY
%o spun L1XA 91Ad SIAA NOILdIDOSYAd LINNODIV
123png 91Ad ey (10.0) 2028 qASOdOUd ATLJIOAV TVALOY
FIES | STIVLHA TANLIANIIXHT !
20UeLIe A =

(SAASD) NOISIAIA WALSAS ALSVA AI'TOS LADLLDANNOD - VAIN






%€0 T 866087 S TIYLISEL S O0IYSHEEL S LETIEFST  § 1d0dsusa] S3SBAA [)0IGRS

%TL R8T (€oLLt) S kel S 0F9'19 S 96¢°Ct S $33 |esodsi(] 21qIss22014-UON. 9 LTS0S~ 100-6F

%9C € ofL'6F¢ S 0C9ELE01 S 09¢'SZL0l S 8¥0°C0L'6 S [esodSIq USY [ 1LZS-C0S-100-6F

%LL 01 000°L S 000°8¢ S 000°¢9 S L91°508 S ssedAq a1sep pyog - s3] |esodsiq  (12Z8-506- (00761

%t6 - Or0'8s) S 099vS0°E S 019966t S 989°8.8'C S (uonepodsuen Fuio£a21 sapnoxo) sadley) Suterad( enuo)  [0LIC-S0S-100-6F

JHOASNYHUL ISV A\

%P0 1~ (000'8¢) S O00°SEL'T S 000°L89T S LII€09°T S SLOTIJ 7 ‘SIpIsqn§ ‘s3] ‘JuauIssassy [ejoiqng

%le'T (000'+7) S 00$°€90'1 S 00S6L0°T S SEF'LS6 s (UIxoL() JuawIssassy ASEM PIOS 90 TE-T09-100-6

%lL T (000°r) £ 008181 S 00¢Lpl S T69°SHI S $994 1Jauag AUNWILIOY) ISOH UONEIS 13JSUBI]  0STE-NXX-100-6F

%00°0 - $ 000°00¢°1 S 00000¢T S 000°00¢°1 S 1O7T1d ProjueH J0 A1y L0STE-108-100-6F
SLOTId *® "SHIAISINS "SAAL "INFWSSASSY

%88t er9TIc S SE0TTE6'T S BLYFFFE S LEFIIFT s sasuadxy IBUO!JE-ladO leioiqung

Yot 0¥ 1ot S 6LE°001 S 000°LIT S 8S6°69 § Sunesadp LyYIQ @RS

%500°0c 000°01 S 00070+ S 0000¢ S S SIALRS [eldUBULY  §C3TS-10C-100-6F

%007001 (000°%) S 000°¢ S = S 00ve S seo1alag ouady Aetodwe]  £197S-10S- [00-6

%t€ et 000 S 000l S 0001 S S¢6'IT S S2OIY=A LOf [9Rg  Z[9CC-10S-T00-6F

%ET It 000°¢ S 00011 S 00091 S 650°¢ S soueiaiutey neday AAM2A  10FZS-10S-100-6F

%18 ¢C 000F S 00s7I S 00¢°¢Ct S FEP'C ) Buiner) g sSunsaly  xNX-10€-100-6F

% SIT LIAA oI AT SIAA NOILdNDOSAd INNODIOV
123png 9184 vey fesopni L qISOdOUd dALdOAY TVNLOV
L1Je3y [EsI | STIV.LEA MANLIANTIXH ‘

20UBLIEA

(SAMSD) NOISIAIA WALSAS ALSVA AI'TOS LAJLLIANNOD - VIIN






%LS€ 00€°L9 S 00L8LOT S 000°9FT'L S szo‘seo’l 5 sasuadyy SunwaadQ sapiwe] VI 810
%19°L 00t°6L S 001'F96 § 00SEPOL S 696°9L6 § sasuadxq SupgeredQ 4dd VI [¥103qng
Ybt 61 000°0L S 000°06C S 000°09¢ B LELT9T S SAMNN B8N0 60EES-TO9-100-6F
%0S'LE (000"8%) S 000941 S 0008zl S £L9°9LT S AW pOCre-709- 1006
%68 Tt 0$8°Ct S 0SH6S §  00£C0L S TS8'Ly $ BUNSAL [RIUSUMONAUY  [(67¢-209-100-6F
%E1'81 00079 S 001LT S 001°¢E S 9EREl S SIURINSUO) SULAWBUT  9co7e-709-100-6F
%E60- (00L) S 008°¢L S 00IcL S 0T6L S 334 JUSWIBEUBI SI1ONPOI] 19MO]  (7£7S-209- 100761
%89 € 0ST°6 S 0sLcee S 000°¢ve S 1¥9°96¢C S SIULIR] S3SUSNT ST 70C7S-209- 1 00-6
%9T 11 009°L1) S 009°FLE S 000°€01 s 950°96 § sasuadxg BunesadQ Jdan VHIIN [E103qng
%0091~ (0o1'8) S oor¢t S 000°¢ S 6TF 11 S BunsaL [RIUSUMLOUAT  [(676-109-[00-6+
%L8'8C- (Q00'11) S ool6r S 000'%¢ S LoV Sk S SIUB[NSUOD) BULISUBUT  §6Q7¢-[00-100-6+
%Z8°C 001°Z S 0007F€ S 00019¢ S 08L70% S saley) FuneradQ WO 60478 109- 100-6F
%95 9T cTre S i8¢ S 0008 S 000°1 S SIULIB] SISUNT §324  70C7E-109-100 61
%S 9% 000t S 00¢y S 0089 N 008 S soueuuey juswdinby 133001 £ 0+7c-109-100-61
%00°0F 00T S 00% S 00% s - S atesprey samdwo)  78et¢-109- [00-6F
%00 001 (oo S 001 s - S 6or! S ArowdaT  F0LEC-109-100-6F
%000 - S 000t S 000'L S €Lt S suogersd( Bupling  +0rZs-109- 1006+
%9¢ 1 (52) S €791 S 00971 S 8191 S suonedWRUALOIRIR ] p(IZE-109-100-61
SASNAIXAT ONILVIAAO SALLITIOVA VI
% siumn LIAA 9IAA SIAA NOILdIYOSdda INNODIYV

2EPNG 9184 we) (Geion) 2128 1ISOJOUd AALLOAY  TVALIV

[ARELCAN LN E

STIVLIA aXd

aoueLEs

(SMSD) NOISTAIA IWHLSAS ALSVA AI'TOS LNADLLDANNOD - VIIIA






€107 Atenuer w pasojo § [ uoiSwlF ()

%59 0" (005°9) §  008°TT S 000091 S L60'8 S SI uolsuifig jwoigng
%000 S 00S°¢ S 0057 S 887 S SIULSJ SASUDNT $234  Z0STS-019-100-6F
%I L1 (00¢) S 000°¢ S 00t B 8Fly S Aooar  p0EES-019-100-6%
%00 001~ (0050 S 000°C § 0087 S S 20UBUBIUEIN PUNOID  C1HTE-019-100-6F
eu s S - s S pLET S aouguaely Juawdinbg 199ford  L0¥ZS-019-100-67
%9 £9- (o0g°€) S 0006 $ 00S°S 3 +z6°1 S suoner2d() Butpiing  0KZS-019-100-6F
%00 0 S 0001 5 0001 S €97 5 SUONEDIUNUIIOdA],  $01T5-019-100-6F
) NOLONITTA - NOILVLS HHASNVHL
23000 - S 00€LTl s 00£LTI S 000°6€T s J131ua) suonerdp py Aydingy jv101gnS
%00 0 . S 008°LTT S 00£LTl S 000'6€ 1 S 1) suonered() py ydimpy Jo a1eys SMSD  $0168-106-100-6F
HUAINTD SNOLLVHAdO AVOX AHdANIN
%81 °¢" (000°8¢) S 000€€TL S 000°S6IT S PELOLO'T S SIBAEY)) 7P $994 JUDWISEUBN STV N [eI0Igng
%85 9" (00070 S 000°LTF S 000°C6€ S CE6'S1E S sostadxa uolig|nBar pue “SUNUNOIIE BuLLUBUT /LS [0S 100-6F
%29 1- (000 €D) S 000918 S 000°£08 S 661°00L S 20 wautadeuely  £0£7$-105-100-6+
SADUVHD ¥ SAAA INTJWIDVNYIA SHVN
%$9°0 €L6°C S ST0°€l6 S 000616 S 0L0SE8 s wonesuadwo)) 3ARUIIUT AIS-UD STVN [8101qns
%6S 0- (core) S €06z S 0009¢cs S LE1-S8Y < uoNesusduo) 2ANUAIU| [SUU0SIO ANS-UO 9d  §1L75-709-100-6F
%1£°C 8L0°6 S TT6E8t S 000€6f  § £€6°6FE s uoesuaduio?) sAnU20U[ [2UUOSISG AIS-UO M 61LES-109-100-6F
NOILVSNAJINOD JATLINIDNI ALIS-NO SAVN
%Sl T (1L6'P08) S LLG'68T0E S 000°S8F6T S 979°r65£°8T S $38aey) Suneaad(Q 1IEnU0) SAVN [E10 ],
05L 9" (€TEPETD) S £IE69S6L S 000°SEL8I opCp6I8l S saSrey) Buneaad( 12enu0) 494 SAVN (B101GnS XONXX-709-100-6F
%t8 €- (€90'86C) S S9C6808 S 00TI6LL S cceliel S peatjiasQ % 10qeT 44d  §1L2S-709-100-6+
%88 8- (85C°9¢h) S §S00SEIT S 00SEPSOL S [FART4SINN 924 (W¥0) 2duBuUIEy % Bulles2d( 4Gd  10£7S-209-100-6F
%CS € TSE6TE S BK90TLOL S 000°0ST'IE S 087°00T°01 S se84ry) Sunessd( 1EHUO) fJA\ SAVN [BI0IGRS X000 109-100-6F
%<0 C (8v6'0cl) S 8P69C0'9 S 000906°C S ILe'Lzrs S pealiaA0 % 10Q8T 4dA  §1£ZS-109-100-6F
%05 01 009°0SS S 00LE69F S 00EPFTS S 60€TLLY S s334 (INQ) 2oueuautely ¥ FunesndO 4dM 10428 109-100-6¢
SADUYVHD ONIILVHAdO LOVIINOD SAVN
% siun LIAL 9IAd SIAA NOLLJIMDSAd INNODIV
PRPRE 914 Ueyl (3000 2128 JISOJOUd dALdOAY  TVALOY

L1 123 |BISIS
JUELIE A

j STIVIAA AUNLIANTIXT '

(SAASD) NOISIAIA IWALSAS ALSVA AI'TOS LNILLDANNOD - VIIN






%60 0 008 S 008799¢ S 000°L9S S 6LI'GFS § I UMO0LIdIBAA [BIOIQNS
%6L €1 002 S 0STl SSE CECITY) S Bunsa] [eyuswmonauy  [06ZS-£19-100-6F
%08 L€ 000°¢ S 000 S 0008 g Lvel S S)uRINSU0)) Buuadwsuy  §¢8TS-£{9-100-6¥
%lL 0 (0087%) S 0099¢S S 008°TES S §TOPES S seB1ey) SuneradQ wenuod  10LTS-E19-100-6F
%0070 S 0ssl S 05¢1 S 423 S SIUU3J/SISUINT S22 ZOSTS-E[9-100-6F
%000 - S 0051 S 00S°LI S 1L6'L S 2oueuaue |y Juswdinby 103lo1d  LOFTE-E19-100-6F
%0001 000°T S 0006 S 000'0L S 878F 3 suonesodQ Auping  HOFTC-E19-100-6F
%88 ¢ 001 S 0091 S 00LT s 811 S SUOHBIUMWWUIOdR[3]  pOTTS-E19-T00-6F
NAMOLYALVA - NOILY LS ¥HASNVYHL
%0 os 1) S 00FLES S 001°9%S S 968°+¢S S SI U0)3uLiIo I, [B)o1qug
%0 ¢ (09 S 00S°¢C S 0SFC < $3€°C S Sunss_ [ejuswuonauy  [06cS-C19-100-6F
%0S LS 000°¢ S 000°S S 0008 S 0€L°1 S sueyasuo)) fuueawsuy  §¢8TS-719-100-6%
%+9°0- (0sT¢) S OSTFIS S 00011 S ¥9¢'91¢ S saBreq) SunesadQ 1060U0D  10LT6-T19-100-61
2400°0 = S 0sctt S 0¢s1 S 443 S SHULIDJ 'SASUINT $92  Z0STS-T19-100-6F
%000 - S 00SI1 S 00SLI S 1L6°L S soueusre | Juswdinby 103lo1d  L0FZS-Z19-100-6F
%ILTL (000" 1) S 000701 S 0006 $ 50%°€ s suonesadQ Bwping  $0+CC-719-100-6¥%
%000 S 009¢ S 009¢ $ P6b'T S SUONEDINUINOIAR],  $01ZS-Z19-100-6%
NOLONIMYOL - NOILLYLS YAASNVIL
%L0 0 00 S 00S°0LS S 00670LS S 097°08¢ § S Xassy [e30Iqns
%0C 01 05T S 00T S 0S¥ ¢ S Ll S Sunsa jeusumonsuy 106761 19-100-6F
%0SLE 000'¢ S 0005 S 0008 S 691°C S siugynsuo)) Supasuisuy  g¢YTS-119-100-6F
%50L°0- (0sL¢) S 0§S9gS S 008'TES D 9k ¢ES S saley) SuneiadQ 1wenuo)  10LZ8-119-100-6F
%00 0 - S 0esT S 0sSL S fag S SHULR( SISUDNT $334  TOSTS-[19-100-6F
%000 S 008 LI S 00SIL S L8 S 2oueuajurepy uawdinby jo2fo1d  L0FCS- 191006
%0¢ L 006 S 0097 LI S oocTl S OFF'€ S suoneladQ Fuppng  p0FTS-119-100-6F
%00 0 S ool't S 00tc S 00T°C S suonEdUIWUIOd(2]  FO1Z$-119-100-6F
XSS - NOLLVLS dAASNYUL
% sim L1AA 9LAA SEAA NOILAIIDSAd INNODDV
12Rpng 9[04 vew 201 21g ((ISOdOUd I LIOAY T¥NLOV
S STIVIAQ TANLIANAIXT

(SMSD) NOISIAIA WHILSAS ALSVM AI'TOS LADILIANNOD - VIIN






ol

%L19¢ SSEPEE S SITTSS § 0L1'9T6 S 68T°0L § ssannpuadxy [g30L
%00°0T 0001 S 0007 S 000'S S [ S Sunse] [EWLBUMIONALY  [0675-905-[00-61
%TTCE- (001°8) S 001°l¢ S 000°€C S 0¢S Y S SIUEINSUOY) SulzaulBuy  R¢8TE-90S-100-61
%30°E1 (5¥6°09) S €98°9¢¢ S 076'S9% S 918759t S asuadxg uoneuodsues]  £0£75-90S-100-6F
%0070 008 S 00§ S 0001 S 0tz S saBIey) SunesadQ) 1EOUCY)  10LTE-90S-[00-6F
%007°001 00000F S - S 000°00F S 9 9lT S 218Qay AdAy2Q BuoAay  07975-905-100-6+
%ES €T 0001 S 0sT'E S STy S £96°1 S SIUUD] SISUIDNT $32  T0SZTS-90S-100-6F
%00°0 S 00¢S S 00S°¢T S 668701 S soueuayuey Juswdinby 193f01g  £01ZE-905-100-61
EU § 3 s ¥9L°T S suonessdQ Supung  $0+75-908-100-6t
%00°001- (00%) g - S 00§ S . S JUBURSIMQUUSY TN CCE7E-90S- 100761
%00'001~ (00s) g = S 00S S 3 S [2ARI] %9 SBUN2W SNG  SOETC-90S-100-6F
%0000 1 (00¢) S - S 00¢ S S SIONON (€527 $11TS-905-100-6F
SUONEDINUAWTLIODI[D ] $017S-905- [00-6+
STANLIANTXT
%Z9°0T (88+'FST) S 8TY6L6 S 9IersTl $ L5TPOT1 S s3(e§ AuNA02y  [01TH-000-100-6F
STANTATY
ALITIDOVA DNITDADAY
% suun L1AA 91T A4 SIAA NOLLdINDSAd LNNODIV
120G 9144 w1 (5104 P18 (ISOdO¥d  dILJOAY  TYNLOV : 3
L1 w24 (23514 STIVLHG HANLIANHIXT F HANTATA
2oueue N

(SAASD) NOISIAIA WHALSAS ALSVA dI'TOS LNJLLOANNOD - VIIIN






